Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 3 June 2020 at 10.00 am

Note: In response to Covid-19 Emergency Guidelines, this
meeting will be held remotely and can be viewed on the County
Council website at the following link: www.gloucestershire.gov.uk
AGENDA

1

APOLOGIES

Chair

To note any apologies for absence.
2

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

Chair

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 4 February 2020
(attached).
3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Chair

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.
4

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE QUESTIONS
Members of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee
are invited to submit questions on matters relating to any item on the
agenda for this meeting.
Please submit any questions to jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk by 4pm
on Thursday 28 May 2020.
Written responses to the questions will be circulated in advance of the
meeting. This will allow the members of the Gloucestershire Economic
Growth Joint Committee to consider any questions or comments made by
the scrutiny committee before making their decisions. A written response
to each question will be produced and published on the Gloucestershire
County Council website. Where it is not possible to provide a written
response before the meeting, the question will be taken away and a
written response provided after the meeting.
Cllr Kevin Cromwell, as Chairman of the Gloucestershire Economic
Growth Scrutiny Committee will be invited to speak at the meeting.

Date Published:26 May 2020

Chair

DECISION ITEMS
5

GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS: GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC
GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE (Pages 9 - 12)

Gillian
Parkinson

a) To receive an update on the governance arrangements for the
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee;
b) To consider proposals relating to the continuation of the Joint
Committee post September 2020
6

BUSINESS RATE POOL FUNDING UPDATE AND SEDF FUNDING
PROPOSALS (Pages 13 - 30)

Andrew
Cummings

To receive an update on the Business Rate Pool, (report attached), prior
to considering the following funding proposals for the allocation of funding
from the Strategic Economic Development Fund, (SEDF).

Mike Dawson

a) SEDF Funding Proposal: Central Gloucestershire City
Region Board
To consider a recommendation from the GEGJC Senior
Officer Group to allocate £2 million, (to be set aside within the
SEDF), to support the work of the proposed Gloucestershire
City Region Board, as requested by Leadership
Gloucestershire.
b) SEDF Funding Proposal: Multi-Modal Transport Brief
Pending the outcome of the decision at 6 a), (above), to
consider a recommendation from the GEGJC Senior Officer
Group to allocate £410,000, (from the approved SEDF ringfenced funding allocation allocated to the Central
Gloucestershire City Regional Board), to support the
commissioning of a Multi-Modal Transport Brief.
7

STRATEGIC PLANNING FUNDING PROPOSAL (Pages 31 - 32)

Mike Dawson

To consider recommendations for the continuation of the Gloucestershire
Strategic Planning Coordination Project.
INFORMATION ITEMS
8

GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 33 - 40)
To receive an update from the GFirst LEP on the status of Growth Deal
Projects for Gloucestershire and the EU Inward Investment Programme.

9

COVID-19 RESPONSE - PLANNING FOR GLOUCESTERSHIRE’S
ECONOMIC RECOVERY (Pages 41 - 56)
In response to the Covid-19 Emergency, the committee: -

Dev
Chakraborty

Mike Dawson
Lisa McCance
David Owen

a) To note information on the proposed development and
implementation of an Economic Recovery Strategy for
Gloucestershire.
b) To receive a verbal update from GFirst LEP on current and future
activities in response to the Covid-19 Emergency.
10

FUTURE MEETINGS

Chair

a) To note the dates GEGJC meetings in 2020
16 September 2020
18 November 2020

b) To note the committee work plan and agree items for consideration
at future meetings.
Membership – Cllr Patrick Molyneux, Cllr Joe Harris, Cllr Steve Jordan, Cllr Richard Leppington,
Cllr Richard Cook, Cllr Doina Cornell, Cllr Rob Bird, Dev Chakraborty and Mally Findlater
(a)

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy,
Performance & Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail:
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b)

INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the
meeting, please contact: Joanne Moore, Senior Democratic Services Adviser
:01452 324196/fax: 425850/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to confirm their attendance (or substitute representatives).

(d)

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions. Please
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements
ahead of the meeting. If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to
Shire Hall in Westgate Street. Please remain there and await further instructions.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2
GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE
Minutes of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee held on
Tuesday 4 February 2020 at Shire Hall, Gloucester
Committee Members:
Cllr Patrick Molyneux
Cllr Steve Jordan
Cllr Paul James
Cllr Bernie O'Neill
Cllr Rob Bird
Cllr Tony Dale
Dev Chakraborty
Officers/Presenters
Steve Mawson (GCC)
Gillian Parkinson (GCC)
Mike Dawson (TBC)
Jon McGinty (Glous City)
Pete Williams (FODDC)
Angela Presdee (GCC)
Claire Edwards (GCC)
Rob Niblett (GCC)
Jeremy Higgins (SLC Rail)
Mark Beckett (SLC Rail)
1.

APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Cllr Joe Harris (Cotswold District Council) and from
Cllr Tim Gwilliam (Forest of Dean District Council).
Cllr Harris was represented at the meeting by Cllr Tony Dale and Cllr Tim Gwilliam
by Cllr Bernie O’Neill.

2.

COMMITTEE MEETING - 20 NOVEMBER 2020
Members recalled that at the Economic Growth Joint Committee meeting on 20
November 2019, the committee had agreed to defer the following items on the
agenda to allow everyone more time to consider the requests for funding from the
Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) and to consider any additional
information that might be relevant to the decisions.
Item 8.2 Local Nature Partnership (LNP) - request for funding in respect of
Natural Capital Mapping; The request related to £40,000 of reserves to be used for
the purposes of contributing towards the overall cost of the commission of the LNP
Capital Mapping Work in 2019/20).
Item 8.3 - Request for funding from the Central Gloucestershire City Region
Board; (one of the three Vision 2050 Delivery Boards). The original request,
(submitted to the committee for consideration at the committee meeting on 20

-1-

Page 1

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

November 2019), represented a request for £500,000 of reserves to be used to
support the commissioning of work by the newly established Central
Gloucestershire City Region Board in 2019/2020.
Item 9 - GFirst LEP Update
Having deferred this item at the committee meeting on 20 November 2019, the
committee was asked to consider the update report published with the agenda for
the November meeting, (published at item 9 of the agenda),detailing activities
relating to the GFirst Local Enterprise Partnership, and to submit any questions on
issues that might require more information. No questions were submitted. At the
committee meeting on 4 February 2020, members were advised that an update on
matters arising since the meeting on 20 November 2019 would be considered at
agenda item 6 of the meeting.
Item 11 – Future Meetings (including consideration of the Committee Forward
Plan and suggestions to facilitate the process of district representatives providing
updates on the progress of growth projects within their areas).
Members noted the outcomes of the following decisions, (resolved at the committee
meeting on 20 November 2019), and agreed to receive an update on the allocation
of reserves allocated for the commissioning of the Gloucestershire Rail Strategy.
Decision 8.1 Rail Investment Strategy
At the committee meeting on 20 November 2019, the committee ratified an inprinciple decision agreed by the committee on 4 September 2019, confirming the
allocation of £70,000 of reserves to be used for the purposes of contributing to the
overall cost of the commission of the Rail Investment Strategy (RIS) for
Gloucestershire. It was agreed that the funding would be allocated in two tranches;
£40k in 2019/20 and £30k in 2020/21. At the committee meeting on 4 February
2020, members were advised that an update on progress following the award of
funding (2019/20) would be considered at agenda item 7 of the meeting.
Decision 8.4 - Request for funding from Cheltenham Borough Council in
respect of the Cyber Central Project At the committee meeting on 20 November
2019, the committee agreed the award of £200,000 reserves as match funding for
the development of an economic evidence base and prospectus for Gloucestershire
and to assist in developing the growth potential of the County
Decision – GFirst LEP Funding At the committee meeting on 20 November 2019,
the committee also agreed an ‘in principle’ decision for the award of £250,000 core
(match) funding, awarded to GFirst LEP for the period 2020/21.
Mike Dawson, Chairman of the Senior Officer Group, (established to support the
economic growth of Gloucestershire), confirmed that the Senior Officer Group had
met on 19 December 2019 to consider the decisions made at the Economic Growth
Joint Committee meeting on 20 November 2019 and to further consider the
proposals/requests for funding for consideration at this meeting.
3.

MINUTES
-2-

Page 2

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 20 November 2019 were agreed and signed as
a correct record of that meeting.
4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Cllr Steve Jordan, (representing Cheltenham Borough Council), declared a nonpecuniary interest in item 5 c) of the agenda, ratification of an in-principle decision
made at the committee meeting on 20 November 2019, agreeing to match fund any
funding awarded to the GFirst LEP by Central Government. Cllr Jordan made the
declaration as a board member of the GFirst LEP Board.

5.

BUSINESS RATE POOL FUNDING
a) Business Rate Pool Update
Andrew Cummings, Section 151 Officer at Stroud District Council, gave a brief
update on the position of the Strategic Economic Development Fund for the period
since last reported to the committee on 20 November 2019.
Based upon the current position, it was anticipated the pool would reach £4 million
at the end of the 2020. This figure would continue to be monitored throughout the
remainder of the 2019/20 financial year, with a final figure reported after district year
end audit procedures were completed. A full update to be provided at the
committee meeting on 18 March 2020.
Application and Assessment Protocol
An overview of the funding bid application and assessment process was provided. It
was noted that, in November 2018, the Joint Committee had approved the eligibility
criteria and project approval process for the assessment of any future funding bids
for consideration of an award from the Strategic Economic Development Fund
(SEDF). The process is outlined below and in the attached criteria flowchart.
Eligibility Criteria for SEDF Applications:
i.

Potential project/request funding requests need to have a significant
strategic economic growth focus and clearly demonstrate the economic
benefits and contribution it is likely to make in supporting delivery of growth
of the local economy and communities in Gloucestershire;

ii.

SEDF is revenue funding (available to support a range of initiatives and
projects);

iii.

Access to the fund is for principle stakeholders only. Local Authorities and
Local Economic Partnership and any project or funding requests will need to
have a clearly identified sponsoring lead organisation or contact; and

-3-

Page 3

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

iv.

Any initial ideas/proposals need to complete a written Expression of Interest
template, to be submitted for consideration to the GEGJC Senior Officers
Support Group, at a relevant meeting. (This process mirrors the same
approach adopted for consideration of new projects for the GEGJC
sponsored Gloucestershire Capital Investment Pipeline (CIP).

Assessment Process:
i.

The Gloucestershire Economic Growth Senior Officer Support Group to
consider and assess formal written Expressions of Interest for SEDF funding
against the eligibility criteria by completing an assessment template at one of
its bi-monthly meetings;

ii.

Officers from the Senior Officer Support Group will advise the Joint
Committee on the conclusions of their assessment and make a
recommendation of approval or not. Where appropriate, officers will also
make comments on the validity and priority of the bid against other potential
commitments. In the case where officers may be advising the committee not
to recommend approval of funding, they will provide an appropriate
explanation as to the reasons why.

iii.

Any project requests considered appropriate and supported by the GEGJC
Senior Officer Support Group will be incorporated into the Joint Committee
agenda papers for the next meeting cycle as part of the Business Rates Pool
Activity Report.

Decision Process/Approval of Funding:
i.

The Committee will require a formal agreement and/or apply binding
conditions to any approved funding, to which the applicant body will be
required to agree prior to the release of funding. In support, the completed
assessment template will outline the recommended relevant terms and
conditions of the award, details with regard to the draw down of funding, plus
the suggested reporting requirements back to the Economic Growth Joint
Committee.

ii.

Any approved funding requests will be subject to the confirmation of
sufficient funds being available in the SEDF pot, during the relevant financial
year, by the CFO of the Business Rate Pool managing authority.

iii.

An offer letter will be prepared for any successful funding awards, which
outlines the approved level of funding, any relevant terms and conditions, the
agreed draw down period and formal reporting requirements. The offer letter
will also incorporate claw back provisions in case required.

It was reported that a significant amount of work had been undertaken by the
Senior Officer Support Group to review and refine the assessment process for the

-4-

Page 4

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

submission of requests for funding from the Strategic Economic Development Fund
(SEDF).
Responding to questions, including a request for clarification on how funding
expressions of interest forms are assessed, it was agreed the Senior Officer
Support Group would review the eligibility criteria against which all bids are
assessed, (criteria established and agreed by the Joint Committee), with a report
back to the committee at a future meeting. Action by – Senior Officer Support
Group
It was confirmed that the decision to review the eligibility criteria of requests for
funding had no impact on the expression of interest forms/requests for funding to be
considered at todays meeting.
For clarification, it was confirmed Andrew Cummings, Strategic Director of
Resources at Stroud District Council, would act as Section 151 Officer with
responsibility for the SEDF, and Steve Mawson, Executive Director for Corporate
Services at Gloucestershire County Council, would act as Section 151 Officer for
the Joint Committee.
Mike Dawson, as Chairman of the Senior Officer Support Group, presented
expression of interest forms in respect of the following requests for funding from the
Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF).
b 1) Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership (LNP)
The committee considered an updated version of the expression of interest form
presented at the committee meeting on 20 November 2019, seeking a contribution
towards the commissioning of works for the Gloucestershire Local Nature
Partnership. The bid related to a one off award of funding, (£40,000), for the
development of a Natural Capital Mapping Tool for the LNP. The work was
considered to be of significant value to assisting local planning authorities with their
work.
Responding to questions on how ongoing costs would be met, it was explained
that, whilst the service would be free to local planning authorities, a fee would be
charged to other service users. A £2.5k per annum maintenance fee would be
covered from the income received from other users.
Having considered the bid in detail, the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Senior
Officer Support Group supported the proposal and recommended that the Joint
Committee approve the bid for funding for the reasons set out below:
The bid has a strong strategic fit; received widespread support from senior planning
staff within the local authorities as to the value of developing a mapping tool; and
good marketability as a centrally held information resource for the wider
development industry in the interest of enhanced joint management of the County’s
growth plans.

-5-

Page 5

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

The project will take approximately 5 months to develop; this will be followed by a
period of data testing. On this basis, the GLNP proposed bringing a report back to
the Joint Committee at the 16 October 2020 meeting to report on progress.
The Joint Committee noted the expression of interest form submitted by the GLNP
and the recommendation from the Senior Officer Support Group and: RESOLVED to authorise the allocation of £40,000 one-off funding from the
Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) for the
development of a Natural Capital Mapping Tool
b 2) Central Gloucestershire City Region Board
At the committee meeting on 20 November 2019, the committee considered an
expression of interest form submitted by the Central Gloucestershire City Region
Board, to be used to support the work of the Board in 2019/20. The item was
deferred, pending further consideration at this meeting.
In October 2018, Leadership Gloucestershire established three Boards to help
deliver the eight ambitions of Gloucestershire Vision 2050. The three boards are:
1. Severn Vale
2. Rural Ambitions
3. Central Gloucestershire City Region
Following the joint committee meeting in November 2019, and further to recent
discussions by Leadership Gloucestershire, regarding the provision of funding for
the three boards, (to be drawn down from the SEDF), a review of the role and
structure of the boards was about to be undertaken. This would be followed by a
revised bid for funding.
For this reason, it was agreed to withdraw the original request for funding, pending
the outcome of the decision on whether the three boards should merge in to a
single Gloucestershire City Region Board.
c) GFirst LEP Funding
At the joint committee meeting on 20 November 2019, the committee had agreed
an ‘in principle’ decision for the award of funding to the Gfirst LEP to match fund
government core funding for the period April 2020 to March 2021.
Mike Dawson, Chairman of the Senior Officer Support Group, confirmed that the
Senior Officer Group had formally assessed the proposal to match fund the
anticipated annual award of £250,000 to GFirst LEP. (National government
provides core funding to all Local Enterprise Partnerships to the value of £250,000).
Match funding to the Gfirst LEP has been provided since 2013/14 via
Gloucestershire County Council directly, or more recently, via decisions made at
the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee.

-6-

Page 6

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

At a meeting on 19 December 2019, the Senior Officer Support Group supported
the proposal that the in principle decision made at the joint committee meeting on
20 November 2019 be ratified at this meeting.
Noting the expression of interest form submitted by GFirst LEP and the
recommendation by the Senior Officer Support Group, the committee ratified the
decision made on 20 November 2019 and
RESOLVED to award £250,000 as core match funding to the GFirst LEP,(to be
drawn down from the SEDF following the award of core funding by national
government for the period 2020/21).
6.

GFIRST LEP UPDATE
Dev Chakraborty, (Deputy Chief Executive for the GFirst LEP), gave an update on
the progress of the Growth Programme for Gloucestershire, including an update on
the EU Funding Programme and the preparations underway for developing a Local
Industrial Strategy (LIS).
Consultation on the Draft Local Industrial Strategy had closed in the Autumn.
Feedback had been received from over 200 organisations and a report, setting out
the key themes emerging from across all of the responses, had been presented to
the LEP Board on 10 December 2019. The Board had agreed a set of
recommendations as a revision to the Draft Strategy, which was now being
considered by the government.
The full consultation report can be read at:
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/local-industrial-strategy-consultationreport.pdf
On 10 March 2020, a panel of Government analysts will consider the Five
Foundations Productivity Evidence Report and a selection of other key documents
from the wider evidence base. A full update to be provided at the joint committee
meeting on 18 March 2020.
It was confirmed that Diane Savory OBE would be stepping down from her role as
Chair of GFirst LEP in July 2020. Diane will have served 9 years as Chair, the
maximum period a chair can stay in the role. A recruitment campaign to find a
successor was currently underway, with the deadline for applications confirmed as
April 30 2020. Interviews to take place in May 2020. Internal candidates, (current
members of the LEP Board), are not allowed to submit an application.
The update was noted.

7.

UPDATE ON RAIL INVESTMENT STRATEGY DECISION
A detailed presentation on the Gloucestershire Rail Industrial Strategy (RIS) was
provided, including details on the award of funding from the Business Rate Pool

-7-

Page 7

Minutes subject to their acceptance as a
correct record at the next meeting

Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) to support development of the
strategy as a countywide commission.
An ‘in-principle’ decision to transfer £70k funding from the Strategic Economic
Development Fund for the development of the RIS was endorsed in September
2019, pending formal ratification of the decision by this committee on 20 November
2019.
The Strategy will be used to inform the Local Transport Plan Review and to feed
into the emerging Local Industrial Strategy.
Please refer to the attached presentation and the link below for details: -

8.

FUTURE MEETINGS
18 March 2020
3 June 2020
16 September 2020
18 November 2020

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.25pm

-8-

Page 8

Agenda Item 5
UPDATE ON THE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR
THE GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE
Meeting

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC)
3 June 2020

Report Author

Gillian Parkinson
Assistant Director, Legal Services (Gloucestershire County
Council)
Tel: 01452 328729
e- mail: gillian.parkinson@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Background
documents

The partner authorities’ decisions to formulate the Joint
Committee and appoint Gloucestershire County Council as the
administering authority.

Location/Contact
for inspection of
background
documents
Main Consultees
Planned Dates

Gloucestershire County Council Democratic Services Shire
Hall Gloucester

Senior Officer Group
September 2020 – completion of agreement for the future
operation of the Joint Committee
Purpose of report
To provide an update on the Committee’s overall governance
arrangements and to propose the continuation of the Joint
Committee from September 2020.
Recommendations 1. To note the overall governance arrangements for the
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee
set out in this report.
2. To request the partner authorities to waive and remove
the twelve months notice period set out in the InterAuthority Agreement dated 4 September 2014,
including removing the need for future notice periods,
and to agree to the GEGJC continuing to operate from
September 2020 for a period of eighteen months.
Reason for
recommendations
Resource
Implications

To allow the GEGJC to continue to operate from September
2020.
As set out in the body of the report.

Page 9

1.

Background

1.1

The Committee was formedi on 4 September 2014 through an Inter Authority
Agreement (IAA) between the County Council and Gloucestershire district
authorities, which sets out the parameters within which it is to operate and its
terms of reference.

1.2

Under the IAA, GEGJC has executive powers which are broadly defined,
including:
“To do anything it considers likely to achieve the promotion or improvement of
the economic wellbeing of the area of Gloucestershire.”
However, these powers are constrained by the following factors:





Each individual partner retains the right to promote or undertake
economic activity within its area (albeit the agreement also requires
partners to advise GEGJC before adopting a position that is at odds
with that of the joint committee);
GEGJC is required to obtain the prior agreement of each partner(s)
before considering a matter for decision in respect of that partner’s
area;
The budget available to GEGJC

2.

The GEGJC decision making powers

2.1

The GEGJC is empowered to take executive decisions within the scope of its
powers, which, as mentioned above, are broad in their definition.

2.2

The GEGJC confirmed at its meeting on 21 November 2018 that each
member of the Committee will need to be empowered by their relevant Council
to enable them to take the decision to be taken at the Committee. This would
have been a matter for each partner authority at the time the Committee was
established in 2014.
As mentioned above, the requirement set out in the IAA confirms the GEGJC
shall not consider a matter for decision in respect of a partner authority’s area
without first obtaining the prior agreement of that partner authority.
In other words, in theory a partner can prevent GEGJC from considering a
decision, but once it has granted agreement for that decision to be considered,
that decision rests with and is subject to a majority vote by GEGJC.

2.2

Decisions are to be taken by majority vote of the voting members of the
committee (with provisions for a quorum and chair’s casting vote also set out).
The Chair of the GFirst LEP and one other member are also members of the
committee, although they do not have any voting powers.

2.3

The IAA also confirms that the GCC constitution shall apply to the committee.
This means that the procedural rules of decision making set out in the GCC

Page 10

constitution apply where the committee is taking executive decisions,
including:
-

Meetings to be conducted in public
A forward plan of decisions to be considered by the committee
Reports to be published 5 days in advance
Decision notices published following the meeting

2.4

Any decisions taken by GEGJC are subject to the call-in procedures of each of
the partner authority. If one partner calls in a decision, it is subject to the
procedures of that partner individually. If more than one partner calls in a
decision, it is to be considered jointly by the Joint Economic Growth Scrutiny
Committee.

3.

Governance arrangements to support the GEGJC

3.1

The IAA confirms that Gloucestershire County Council is responsible for the
governance of the Committee, as the Administering Authority.

3.2

A Senior Officers Group has been established to support the partnership, but
formal governance remains the responsibility of the Administering Authority, in
particular:



GCC’s s151 officer acts as the s151 officer for GEGJC.
GCC’s monitoring officer acts as the monitoring officer for GEGJC

4.

GEGJC’s Budget Setting process

4.1

The Senior Officers Group oversees the formation and development of
GEGJC’s draft budget, essentially negotiating and proposing how much each
authority should contribute.

4.2

Each authority’s contribution is then taken through the budget-setting cycle as
part of its own decision-making processes, referring any proposed
amendments to the draft budget back to GEGJC.
Each partner has until 18th February each year to approve any amendments to
the draft budget.
The final budget is then approved by GEGJC by 28th February.

4.3

In the event that either partners or GEGJC fails to approve a draft budget by
26th February, the joint committee operates within the previous year’s budget
(adjusted for inflation) until such time as agreement is reached.

5.

Future arrangements for the GEGJC

5.1

The IAA confirms that the initial term for the GEGJC was for a five year term
which is due to end in September 2020. Therefore, arrangements now need
to be put in place for the future operation of the Joint Committee. However,

Page 11

currently there are other joint working arrangements to promote the economy
under development in the County. It is proposed to extend the future operation
of the joint committee for a further eighteen months following the end of the
IAA in September 2020.
The IAA recognised that the GEGJC may continue for a further period and
allowed the partner authorities to agree to extend the agreement not less than
12 months before expiry of the agreement. None of the partner authorities
have agreed to the extension within this timeframe; however, it is open to the
partner authorities to agree to waive and remove such notice period to enable
the Joint Committee to continue. Therefore, the proposal is for each partner
authority to confirm the future operation of the Joint Committee for the next
eighteen months until March 2022.

The committee is formed under sections 101 (5) and 102 of the Local Government Act 1972 and
under Part 1A chapter 2 section 9EB of the Local Government Act 2000 and pursuant to the Local
Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 and any other
enabling legislation.
i

Page 12

Agenda Item 6
GLOUCESTERSHIRE BUSINESS RATES POOL MID-YEAR UPDATE
Meeting
Report author

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, June 2020
Andrew Cummings – Strategic Director of Resources
Stroud District Council
Email: andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk

Background
documents

Report to GEGJC November 2019

Location/Contact
for inspection of
background
documents

N/A

Main consultees

Gloucestershire Chief Financial Officers

Planned dates

N/A

Purpose of report

1. To update members of the committee on the forecast outturn of the
2019/20 Business Rates Pool and the estimated balance of the SEDF;
and
2. To make a recommendation for an allocation of £2 million to be set aside
within SEDF to fund the work of the newly configured Gloucestershire
City Region Board as requested by Leadership Gloucestershire.
The Committee:
1. Note the forecast outturn of the Business Rates Pool for 2019/20 and
estimated balance for the SEDF and

Recommendations

2. Set aside an allocation of £2million within the SEDF to be available solely
for the Gloucestershire City Region Board and that release of this funding
is subject to further reports to this committee on a project by project basis
And subject to 2;
3. To approve a recommendation from the GEGJC Senior Officer Group to
drawdown £410,000, (from the approved SEDF ring-fenced funding allocation
allocated to the Central Gloucestershire City Regional Board), to support the
commissioning of a Multi-Modal Brief. Appendix A sets out further details.

Reasons for
recommendations

To update the Committee on the forecast for the Business Rates Pool

Resource
Implications

There are no resource implications to implementing this recommendation.

Page 13

Background
1. After the end of the Business Rates Pilot Gloucestershire is again operating as a pool,
including all of the Districts.
2. The last update report to this Committee predicted that there would be a gain from the
pool to the Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) of £720k in 2019/20 as part
of a total pool benefit of £3.6m.
3. In October 2018 Leadership Gloucestershire established three Boards to help deliver
the eight ambitions of Gloucestershire Vision 2050. The three boards are:


Severn Vale



Rural Ambitions



Central Gloucestershire City Region

4. In recent weeks there has been discussion at this Committee and at Leadership
Gloucestershire in respect of the provision of funding for the three boards from the
SEDF. At its meeting on 5 March 2020, Leadership Gloucestershire agreed that the
three boards should be merged in to a single Gloucestershire City Region Board
serving the whole of the county.
5. The detailed governance arrangements for the new partnership board are to be
developed and reported to the next meeting of Leadership Gloucestershire for
consideration. This work will include setting out how the new board will work with
existing bodies and partnerships such as this committee and what, if any, other
partnerships this new board might replace in the interest of efficiency and avoidance of
duplication.
The New Gloucestershire City Region Board and Funding Allocation Proposal
6. The overall aims of the new Board will be to develop and deliver a vison for the future
growth economic success of the whole the Gloucestershire economic area while taking
into account climate change and related transport challenges.
7. Leadership Gloucestershire considered a range of potential projects for the new board
which would require substantial funding. This initial list is provided with estimated costs
as follows:
Evidence based deficit and feasibility/business cases – not yet funded:
1. Countywide land availability study – future sites - £250k
2. Countywide employment land availability study – existing sites only - £100k
3. Countywide energy availability assessment including renewable energy - £100k
4. Countywide education assessment study - £50k
5. Countywide health assessment study - £50k
6. Countywide waste assessment study - £50k
7. Upper catchment flood risk improvement plan - £100k
8. Countywide multi-modal transport model build and scenario testing - £600k
9. Cross boundary support for M5 J14 feasibility study - £100k
10. Strategic outline business case development for strategic bus priority measures £200k
11. Strategic outline business case for strategic cycle priority measures - £200k
12. Viability study for providing reduced or free bus passenger transfer within central
area - £50k

Page 14

13. New development design standard - £100k
14. Outline business case for mass rapid transport corridor - £3m
8. The list, excluding the last item, which would need to be dealt with separately totals
£1.95 million. Although the list will need to be worked up in more detail and some of the
items may need to be met from the budgets of partner organisations or government
agencies, it is clear that the work of the board will require the availability of substantial
funding.
9. Leadership Gloucestershire resolved that this committee should be requested to set
aside an allocation of £2million within the SEDF to be available solely for the
Gloucestershire City Region Board. Release of funding from within the set aside
allocation will be subject to further reports on a project by project basis.
10. The £2 million included as an allocation does not include the officer time to support this
significant piece of work. As the scale of the work becomes clearer officer time may be
needed to co-ordinate and if necessary it will be included in future draw down requests
to this committee.
11. The Senior Officer Group considered this matter on 5 March 2020 and concluded that
the overall aims of the new Gloucestershire City Region Board will substantially benefit
the overall economy and success of the whole county and the work of the board will
require funding at this level.
12. The Senior Officer Group therefore fully supports the Leadership Gloucestershire
proposal. The figures given in the financial forecast that follows and in Appendix B
include the £2million allocation.
Drawdown 1 – Funding for Multi Modal Transport Brief
13. If approved by Committee the first drawdown required from the £2 million will be £410k
for the multi-modal brief. The following paragraphs set out the need for such a study
and the funding template is included at Appendix A.
14. Gloucestershire is seeing significant population growth and housing demand and will
experience even more growth through additional development land allocations set to be
made through emerging Local Plans. It is clear, that this level of growth will require
significant master planning activities to set out the broad ambitious growth aims and
priorities which can be used to guide the development of future spatial and strategic
plans. To drive forward this agenda, Leadership Gloucestershire has proposed that a
Gloucestershire City Region Board is established. However, the work of this Board and
of any future master planning activities in Gloucestershire can only be successful if it is
supported by high quality, data let, evidence.
15. At the heart of all spatial planning activities has to be consideration of the necessary
transport infrastructure. Furthermore, there are additional challenges including the
urgency of reducing CO2 emissions to combat climate change and the need for a more
inclusive transport system. Addressing these challenges and accommodating additional
growth can only be achieved through modal shift away from private car use to more
sustainable modes, including walking, cycling and Public Transport. However, at
present Gloucestershire is unable to fully assess the impacts of investment in major
public transport schemes, or model the (transport) sustainability of potential

Page 15

development sites, because Gloucestershire County Council’s highway base transport
model has only limited ability to model sustainable modes of transport. An up to date
Highways model and a Multi-Modal Model will be needed to assess development
impacts of future local plan growth and potential sustainable mitigation measures, thus
driving forward and providing crucial evidence for, the work of the Gloucestershire City
Region Board.
Financial Forecast – Business Rates Pool
16. The final gain to the SEDF of the 2018/19 100% Business Rates Pilot has now been
confirmed at £3.438 million and this is reflected in the table at Appendix B.
17. The Covid-19 pandemic will clearly have a fundamental impact on the economy within
the County and therefore the level of business rates collected. As the government
restrictions came in place at the end of March 2020 there will probably be minimal
impact on actual collection the 2019/20 year. Where there may be a reduction in
growth in 2019/20 is through the likelihood of billing authorities increasing provisions to
anticipate losses in future years.
18. There has been a significant positive change in relation to the business rates position at
Tewkesbury Borough Council during the last quarter. This has seen the authority
become able to release provisions previously set aside to cover appeal losses. The
release of these provisions sees a significant boost to the position of both Tewkesbury
and the pool. This major boost is a one off event.
19. Based upon the new positions an estimated pool gain of £4.5 million is now anticipated
of which £900k will pass to the SEDF. This should be viewed with some caution until
figures are confirmed as clearly the year end process for 2019/20 could see changes
(see para 14). The pandemic has changed the deadlines for such work and authorities
now have until the end of November 2020 for the publication of final accounts
20. The distribution of the pool benefit, which is based on the previously agreed
methodology, is set out in the table below.
19/20
forecast
Outturn

Distribution

Strategic Economic Development Fund (as
£900k
administered by GEGJC)
District Councils

£2.879m

County Council

£719k

Total Pool Gain

£4.498m

21. The gain in future years is far from certain and must be regarded as such. The long
term impact of Covid-19 on collected rates is not known at this stage. An anticipated
gain for 2020/21 has been included, with a reduction of 20% of the previously estimated
figure. This is currently £578k but is subject to significant fluctuation.

Page 16

Future of the Business Rates Pool
22. It has now been confirmed that the Business Rates Pool will continue into 2020/21 with
Stroud DC acting as the lead body. This will generate one further year of gain for the
SEDF in 2020/21, currently uncertainly estimated at £578k as discussed in paragraph
18. The uncertainty around this figure mean that caution should be exercised if using
this balance as part of any funding allocation.
23. It has previously been reported that the legal case by NHS foundation Trusts was a risk
to the funding of the pool. In December 2019 the High Court ruled that NHS Trusts and
Foundation Trusts are not eligible for business rates relief which appears to eliminate
that risk. It is understood that NHS Trusts may be seeking leave to appeal. Updates
will be provided in future reports.
Risk Assessment
24. As always there is a risk to the business rates pool in 2019/20 from the settling of
backdated appeals. The issue of NHS Trusts requesting charitable status remains the
most significant financial risk to the pool and pool members.
Officer Advice
25. No officer advice required
Equalities considerations
26. There are no equalities considerations associated with this decision. It is purely a
financial consideration.
Consultation feedback
27. Each of the Business Rates Pool members has been consulted about this report.
Performance Management/follow-up
28. The final position of the Business Rates Pool for 2019/20 will be reported after the end
of the audit process.

Page 17

Appendix B

Projected Balance of the SEDF
GEGJC
Decision
Date

2018/19
(£’000)

2019/20
(£’000)

2020/21
(£’000)

2021/22
(£’000)

Item
Funding
SEDF Balance b/f
2017/18 Pool (confirmed)
2018/19 Pilot Gain (confirmed)
Pool Gain (indicative)
SEDF Funding
Allocations
Operating Costs for Joint
Committee
LEP Core Funding (Match)

336
828
3,438

3,972

4,377

2,605

4,602

900
4,872

578
4,955

0
2,605

Nov 17

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

Nov
17/Feb
20

(250)

(250)

(250)

(250)

0

0

0

(75)

0

0

0

(275)

0

0

0

(25)

0

(25)

0

0

0

(70)

0

LEP/LA Inward Investment
Programme (EU Match)

Nov 17

J.10 Business Case Commission
(contribution)

Nov 18

Economic Intelligence Data
Commissioning Fund

Nov 18

Rail Investment Strategy

Sept 19

LNP Capital Mapping

Feb 20

(40)

0

0

Cyber Central

Nov 19

(200)

0

0

0

(2,000)

0

City Region Board
Total Allocations

(630)

(495)

(2,350)

(255)

SEDF Balance c/f

3,972

4,377

2,605

2,350

Notes
 SEDF balance held and accounted for by Gloucestershire County Council

Page 18

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee: Strategic Economic
Development Fund (SEDF)
Item 6 b - Expression of Interest/Application Template
Gloucestershire Economic Growth: Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF):
This fund is for the benefit of the whole of Gloucestershire, and utilising funds from the
current Gloucestershire Local Authority Business Rates Pool. It facilitates collective
work on the economic development agenda and reflects the commitment of the Pool
participants to drive economic investment which also links to the planning and
infrastructure process. Eligibility criteria for the fund has been established and agreed by all
participants, against which bids for funding are assessed.
Access to the Fund is for the principle stakeholders only – the Local Authorities and Local
Economic Partnership, and any project or funding request will need to have a clearly
identified sponsoring lead organisation/contact. Expression of Interest submissions should
be completed and submitted for consideration by the Gloucestershire Economic Growth
Joint Committee Senior Officer Support Group, at a relevant meeting. They will assess its
potential against the criteria and whether a good strategic fit. This mirrors the same
approach adopted for the consideration of new projects for the Gloucestershire Capital
Investment Pipeline (CIP).
Project Name:
Gloucestershire Multi-Modal Model.
Investment theme: Tick the primary theme that best fits your project. If applicable, also tick a sub
theme. If ‘other’ state and explain.)
Primary Investment theme:
Business Environment □ Housing □ Infrastructure □ Place Shaping X Skills and Employment □
Other □
Sub investment theme:
Digital □ Education □ Employment X Energy

□ Housing X Regeneration □

Transport X

Other

□
Promoter Details:
Promoter Organisation
Promoter Address

Gloucestershire County Council
Transport Planning,
Shire Hall,
Westgate Street,
Gloucester
GL1 2TH

Primary Contact (name & job
title)

Dave Simmons – Principal Transport Planner

Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Development Fund

Page 19

July 2019

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee: Strategic Economic
Development Fund (SEDF)
Email Address

Dave.simmons@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Contact Telephone Number

01452 425651

Project Summary (Max 250 words) (Describe your project idea clearly and succinctly, including what
the investment would buy, and why it would lead to economic growth for Gloucestershire. Include
the potential timeframe, and any significant drivers or constraints related to the scheduling of the
investment.

Gloucestershire is seeing significant population growth and housing demand and will experience
even more growth through additional development land allocations set to be made through
emerging Local Plans. This will put ever increasing pressure on Gloucestershire’s transport network,
requiring a decisive response to how transport is planned and organised. At the same time, there are
key challenges including the urgency of reducing CO2 emissions to combat climate change and the
need for a more inclusive transport system.
Addressing these challenges and accommodating additional growth can only be achieved through
modal shift away from private car use to more sustainable modes, including walking, cycling and
Public Transport. However, at present Gloucestershire is unable to fully assess the impacts of
investment in major public transport schemes, or model the (transport) sustainability of potential
development sites, because Gloucestershire County Council’s highway base transport model has
only limited ability to model sustainable modes of transport.
It is therefore proposed, to build a Multi Modal Transport Model to enable Gloucestershire to
explicitly model public transport and active travel (walk and cycle) modes and to complement GCC’s
highway based transport modelling suite.
The development of such model will support the strategic ambition to deliver a Mass Rapid Transit
System within Gloucestershire’s Central Severn Vale, as expressed in Gloucestershire’s draft
Industrial Strategy and help to inform land use planning decisions in emerging District Local Plans
from a sustainable transport perspective.
Summary of benefits/outcomes that will be delivered (Max 250 words) (Expanding on your
summary, provide information on the tangible benefits or outcomes that would be delivered, leading
to the growth of the Gloucestershire economy. These could address challenges or capitalise on
opportunities, including those associated with improving productivity.
List the expected benefits, estimated quantities and indicate the timescales).
A multi modal transport model will enable a better understanding of future travel demand from
growth in Gloucestershire, direct growth towards locations with high levels of sustainable transport
accessibility, and provide a reliable tool to create a Full Business Case for a Mass Rapid Transit
System in Gloucestershire.
Benefits:

Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Development Fund

Page 20

July 2019

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee: Strategic Economic
Development Fund (SEDF)
Improved Land Use Planning
60,000 new homes and 300ha of employment land is Gloucestershire’s growth ambition. Current
local plans have identified approximately 25,276 homes and 88.8ha of employment land. The JCS
and Stroud Local Plans are under review. The JCS review aims to provide 35,175 homes and 192ha of
employment. 12,000 new homes and 52ha of employment land are proposed through Stroud’s
Local Plan Review. An up to date Highways model and a Multi-Modal Model will be needed to assess
development impacts of future local plan growth and potential sustainable mitigation measures.
Support Major Transport Schemes
A Multi-Modal Model will also be required to assess the likely demand for a Mass Rapid Transit
system and give an indication of the system type best suited to Gloucestershire. This will provide
evidence for Full Business Case development and increase the potential of Gloucestershire receiving
future funding.
Outcome:
An up to date transport model suite that includes a fully developed Multi-Modal Model. Following
phase 2, a spread sheet model will be produced, that will allow some high level testing, before a full
Multi Modal Model is available.
Timescales
2020:
Phase 1 – Scoping, Initial data collection and gap analysis.
Phase 2a – Evidence base development and baselining.
Phase 2b – Requirement refining and model development plan.
Phase 2c –Spreadsheet Model development.
2021/2022:
Phase 2d – Additional data collection
Phase 3 – Model development and forecasting.

Strategic Fit (Max 150 words) (Give the local, regional or national context for your project. Explain
how it clearly aligns to the Strategic Economic Plan v2
https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2018/sep-2-update2018v3.pdf
and complements the local District strategies and delivery plans
The Gfirst LEP in their Local Industrial Strategy has stated the importance of a Mass Rapid Transit
(MRT) system to serve the Gloucester and Cheltenham urban area. It has been identified as one of
the key infrastructure requirements to provide a reliable, quick and clean alternative to the private
car.
Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Development Fund

Page 21

July 2019

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee: Strategic Economic
Development Fund (SEDF)
The proposal for a MRT system was also picked up in the emerging revised Gloucestershire Local
Transport Plan (2015 - 2041) and a Mass Transit solution to support modal shift is also identified as a
medium to long-term regional transport priority in the Western Gateway’s emerging Strategic
Transport Plan.
A Multi-Modal Model will enable the development of a robust Full Business Case for a Mass Transit
solution and help determine the likely demand for a MRT system and provide an indication as to
what sort of MRT system should be progressed and help to model the benefits of sustainable travel
and influence future infrastructure needs.
In addition it will inform the plan making process for the District Local Plans.

Evidence of need or demand (Max 150 words) (give details of the evidence you can reference that
supports your case that there is a need or demand for this project)
Currently there are high levels of congestion on key routes with limited scope for highway-based
improvement solutions1. Further growth will worsen congestion beyond acceptable levels or risks
blocking the delivery of economic growth and reducing Gloucestershire’s productivity. Furthermore,
Gloucestershire County Council and most of Gloucestershire’s Districts have declared a climate
emergency and the business as usual approach will not allow the authorities to meet their climate
targets.
A Multi Modal Transport Model will enable an informed decision on future Land Use allocations,
enabling suitable travel and ensure that the necessary sustainable infrastructure can be identified,
assessed and targeted to the most appropriate locations so as to actively change travel behaviour
and increase the mode share of sustainable methods of transport.
Furthermore, any major investment in public transport infrastructure will require a robust
assessment tool to create a Business Case compliant with Government guidance. A Multi Modal
Model would provide such a tool.

Summary of the project costs and any sources of funding: (Estimated total capital cost of the
project, and (if available) list the main elements of the budget. Provide details of any potential or
secured source(s) of funding and the likely shortfall.)
The Multi-Modal Model development will consist of a number of phases, high level cost estimates are broken
down as follows;
1

Travel in the CSV’s urban area is dominated by the private motorcar with single occupancy car trips
mode share an average of 69.1%. Bus mode share averaged at 7.3% despite the very high frequency
of services in the urban areas. Bike mode share was only 4.8% on average across the Central Severn
vales urban areas.

Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Development Fund

Page 22

July 2019

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee: Strategic Economic
Development Fund (SEDF)

Phase 1 – Light touch scoping = £10k
Phase 2 – Evidence base development and spreadsheet model: £100k. (Cost may include additional data
collection. Please note that is not possible to collect data at present, due to the Covid-19 related lock down.
The Data collection element may therefore be moved into phase 3).
Phase 3 – Multi-Modal Model development using a revised SATURN base model 2020/21 = £400k
The total cost of developing the model is £510k, however £100k is already available for revising the SATURN
base model.
The total funding being sought is £410k.

Summary of the Revenue Investment(s) required (Explain how the project would be deliverable and
sustainable by explaining the sources of revenue funding to support the likely cost needed to deliver
the project following the capital investment)

Project Status (select from one of the following, and provide brief explanation)
Concept Stage (very early stages, requires
considerable development before it could be
considered for funding)
Outline Stage (early stages, some detail clear but
longer term aspiration which will need further
development)
Developed Stage (clear project plan, deliverable,
but seeking funds)

The tasks for early phase model development
have already been identified and set. The project
will make use of existing data primarily and then
will seek additional data based on a gap analysis.
A project brief outlining the aims, objectives and
outcomes has been drafted ready for submitted
to an appropriate consultant.

Mobilising Stage (project moving close to
delivery, which still has some challenges to
overcome)
Project Status: key milestones (where applicable, provide brief notes on the current situation)
Promoter identified GCC is commissioning Atkins to complete the
work as part of their professional services
Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Development Fund

Page 23

July 2019

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee: Strategic Economic
Development Fund (SEDF)
agreement with the County.
Full Business case available
Planning Status
Land Assembly (potential requirement for CPO)
Confirmed Funding Sources
Design Detail Stage
Earliest Potential Start Date

Key challenges/risks associated with Project (give brief indication of the main challenges or risks
associated with the successful delivery of this project)
Challenge / Risk
Funding shortfall

Covid-19

Delayed Model delivery

Lack of expert knowledge

Potential Impact / mitigation
If funding is not available to develop a Multi-Modal Model it will
impact significantly on GCC’s ability to assess and inform land use
planning decisions. Without sufficient funding there is a strong
possibility that it will impact on the delivery of GCC’s LTP ambitions to
encourage mode shift to sustainable transport as well as GCC’s ability
to meet climate change targets.
While phases 1 and 2 of the project can be delivered without new
data, the last phase of the project will require new traffic data
collection. This will not be possible until traffic levels have returned to
levels that can be considered representative of a long term trend.
This will impact on GCC’s ability to manage long-term risk and
network resilience as well as prevent GCC’s ability to access/produce
evidence to support future funding bids for major transport
infrastructure schemes.
Transport models are complex computer programmes that need a
specific expertise to be built. At present it is proposed that the model
would be built by Atkins, one of the largest transport planning
consultants in the UK and experienced in delivering projects of this
scale.

Declaration by Applicant
I certify to the best of my knowledge the information submitted on this form is true and correct.
Signed (on behalf of Promoter)

Date:-06/05/2020
Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Development Fund

Page 24

July 2019

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee: Strategic Economic
Development Fund (SEDF)

Name and title: Dave Simmons, Principle Transport Planner

Sent to: (Name of organisation / person )
Date submitted:

Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Development Fund

Page 25

July 2019

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 6 b Appendix A Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool – SEDF Funding Assessment
Gloucestershire Multi Modal Model Funding Request
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Senior Officer Group’s consideration of SEDF application against
eligibility criteria
The bid is from a ‘sponsoring’ partner authority of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint
Committee (‘Joint Committee’) or the Gloucestershire Local Economic Partnership
Senior Officer Group assessment:
Gloucestershire County Council is the sponsoring partner authority for this County wide activity, as
part of the £2m City Region funding allocation/bid.
The bid relates to one off or fixed term funding
Senior Officer Group assessment:
The bid relates to a one off funding - £410,000 for the multi modal model work
The bid relates to revenue support for enabling activity which:
 Support economic growth projects, partnership support or
 Enable the commissioning of economic research, intelligence, pre development work or
feasibility studies or
 Provide pump priming funding contributions or
 Provide essential leverage match funding to support the delivery of broader local economic
projects or programmes.
Senior Officer Group assessment:
This bid does support future economic growth projects and partnership support and enables the
commissioning of economic research, intelligence etc, to support the delivery of broader local
economic growth projects/programmes. It also provides support for the transport modelling, which
is an essential part of any medium/long term growth plans for the county.
The work will aid in planning and delivery of sustainable economic growth in the County. It will
support the JCS Core Strategy and District Local plans in ensuring that development will only take
place at the most sustainable locations. It will assist with long term land and transport planning to
achieve sustainable development.
By undertaking the multi modal model study across the whole of the county, in addition to being the
best way to undertake the transport study of this nature, it will deliver economies of scale for the
local planning authorities.
The bid provides evidence of clearly demonstrating the economic benefits and contribution it is
likely to make in supporting the delivery of growth of the local economy and communities, as well
as planned outcomes.
Senior Officer Group assessment

Page 27

Yes – we need support for this information to support economic / housing growth across the County.
A multi-modal transport model generally consists of a highway assignment model (SATURN
modelling software) and a public transport model (e.g. EMME software) together with variable
demand modelling capacity. The purpose of the model will be to provide a robust means of
addressing current and future transport-related problems affecting all modes of travel. This involves
developing a base model to represent the existing transport networks and their performance within
Gloucestershire then develop a Reference Case to assessing alternative land-use options and
development phasing, and for this to withstand public scrutiny.
The main purpose of the model is therefore to enable regeneration and growth ambitions set out in
Gloucestershire’s strategic planning documents, such as the SEP, draft LIS, the emerging Local
Transport Plan and emerging Local Plans. The model will also assist planning applications and enable
the progression of the JCS and Local Plans.
Therefore measurable outputs include: a more sustainable Land Use growth strategy and successful
adoption of future Local Plans This will enable Gloucestershire to continue to grow despite the
highway network constrictions by identifying suitable and sustainable locations, as well as enable
the identification and development of the necessary public/active transport infrastructure.
The work will also assist the Local Planning Authorities with handling planning and Local Authorities
and developers can use the reference case highway assignment model for developing their
development proposals models to assess the impact of their development/scheme.
The work will also greatly assist with addressing the climate change targets and meeting
Gloucestershire’s ambition to be carbon neutral by 2050.

Further conditions if the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Committee approve the bid:
Section 151 Officer’s confirmation that sufficient funds are available in the Strategic Economic
Development Fund during the relevant financial year.
Approved funding is for one off activity and the £410k is required from 20/21 and 21/22. This is a
drawdown from the overall £2m requested from the City Region board.
Assessment of the priority of the bid against other proposals to utilise the Strategic Economic
Development Fund
This request for funding was assessed and given a score of 4 and seen as a ‘strong fit’
Terms and conditions of the approved bid (to include any binding conditions to any approved
funding to which the applicant body will be required to agreed before any release of funding, plus
reporting requirements)
Release of Funding -

Page 28

GCC Officers have advised that they would like to draw down the £410,000 SEDF funding in two
tranches - £210,000 in 2020/21 and £200,000 in 2021/22, as soon as possible, following
consideration of the bid by the GEGJC meeting on 3rd June 2020.
The planned phases of development of the modelling work is very much subject to change and will
also very much depend on how Covid-19 will influence traffic levels. The proposed phases and the
funding levels will be reviewed following the funding decision and a detailed draw down schedule
and key milestones are developed.
GEGJC Reporting It is proposed that key milestones are identified in a project inception meeting, following funding
award. These milestones will form the basis of future reports to the Joint Committee.

Recommendations to the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee
The Gloucestershire Economic Growth Senior Officer Group recommend the Gloucestershire
Economic Growth Joint Committee approve the bid set out above for the reasons confirmed below:
Strong strategic fit and has widespread support from all Senior Officers, within the local
authorities, as to the value of this essential modelling work, that will underpin all future growth
planning work and help meet the delivery of the economic growth expectations of the County.

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
UPDATE ON STRATEGIC PLANNING IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE
Meeting
Report Author

Background
documents
Location/Contact
for inspection of
background
documents
Main Consultees
Planned Dates
Purpose of report
Recommendations

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC)
3 June 2020
Mike Dawson
Chair of GEGJC Senior Officer Group
Tel: 01684 272001
e- mail: mike.dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk
GEGJC Papers 29 November 2017 and 18 May 2018
Gloucestershire County Council Democratic Services Shire Hall

District Chief Executives Group
N/A
To recommend arrangements for the continuation of the
Gloucestershire Strategic Planning Coordination Project
To consider:
1. The current position in respect of the strategic spatial
planning coordination project is noted.

Reason for
recommendations
Resource
Implications

2. The proposals set out in section three of this report are
approved.
To allow the spatial planning project to continue the work to produce
a Statement of Common Ground as an agreed long term spatial
planning strategy for Gloucestershire.
As set out in the body of the report.

1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

At its meeting on 18 May 2018, the committee resolved that:
1. Point Consultancy Ltd are appointed by Tewkesbury Borough Council acting as
the contracting authority for the GEGJC to undertake the tasks associated with
the Strategic Planning Coordinator. The contract was for a two year fixed term
with the ability to extend the contract and
2. Supervision, location, and cost sharing arrangements associated with this
contract remain as agreed by the GEGJC on 29 November 2017. The cost
sharing agreement agreed by the GEGJC at its meeting was on the following
basis:
 50% Gloucestershire County Council and
 Remainder shared equally between the district councils and the GFirst
LEP.

1.2

Work in respect of strategic planning coordination across the county has been led by
Point Consultancy since May 2018 through the Leaders Board and associated officer
group established for the task. It has been agreed by the Leaders Board that the best
approach to set out an agreed long term, i.e. to 2050, spatial planning strategy for
Gloucestershire is through a Statement of Common Ground document (SoCG)
adopted by all the relevant local planning authorities and endorsed by the GFirst
LEP.

Page 31

1.3

Recent developments in respect of local spatial plans, climate change response and
integration with transport infrastructure mean strategic spatial planning will need to
be considered across more than a single local plan period. Therefore, the importance
of the SoCG project is perhaps more significant than ever.

2.0

THE CURRENT POSITION

2.1

The next stage is to move to an adoption of the SoCG. Work to date has produced a
basic draft of the SoCG, but further work is needed to finalise the document in order
that it can be adopted by partners. Point Consultancy is unlikely to be in a position to
proceed with concluding this piece of work in the short term and before the end of
the fixed term contract in May 2020. Therefore, the district chief executives,
including director level representation from Gloucestershire County Council and the
lead senior planning officers have explored options to progress the development of
the SoCG and the proposal is to put temporary arrangements in place to take the
project forward.

2.2

It has been agreed that the Strategic Planning Manager from Cheltenham Borough
Council will take on the Spatial Planning Coordinator’s role and lead the Senior
Planning Officers Group set up for the project. The aim of the temporary
arrangements will be to produce a draft SoCG.

2.3

It should be noted that this draft of the SoCG will set out the general direction of
travel of the document for consideration by the committee and further more detailed
work will be needed to complete the final document. It is not possible at this stage to
indicate when the final draft of the SoCG will be available for consideration, but it is
intended that this is completed within 2020 or early 2021. Once completed, the
SoCG will be a dynamic document subject to amendment over future years as
required.

2.4

The work to develop the SoCG will require the support of strategic planning officers
from all local authorities and the chief executives have indicated their support for this
approach. Cheltenham BC senior officers have stated that the leadership provided
by the Strategic Planning Manager will be provided without cost until end May 2020.

3.0

PROPOSALS

3.1

The proposal is for the project lead provided by the Cheltenham BC Strategic
Planning Manager to continue until the end of the project. Under this arrangement,
from 1 June 2020 Cheltenham BC will require reimbursement of the salary costs for
the officer time committed to the project in order that the Cheltenham Strategic
Planning Manager post can be backfilled as required.

3.2

It is proposed that the costs to be reimbursed to Cheltenham BC be shared using the
same arrangements agreed by the committee on 29 November 2017 as set out
above. This cost will be less than the arrangement with Point Consultancy Ltd and it
is anticipated that the total cost will not exceed £15,000.

Page 32

Agenda Item 8
GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting 3rd June 2020
Prepared by Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive GFirst LEP)

1) Gloucestershire Growth Deal – attachments
Attached to this report are the most up to date spreadsheets (up to 27th April, 2020) for the
Growth Deal programme.
These highlight;
i)

‘Forward Look’ – a comprehensive list of all Growth Deal funded projects
with a focus on their current status.

ii)

‘Projects Summary’ – a comprehensive list of all Growth Deal funded projects
that highlights forecasted outputs from each project.

These documents are also available on GFirst LEP’s website;
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/
2) Growth Deal – ‘Headlines’ (to end of April 2020)






Growth Hub Network: Concentration has now switched to support for
businesses in response to Covid-19. A Business Response Survey has been
distributed. Up to 21st May, 613 responses were received from
Gloucestershire businesses, 48% of which requested further support.
Support was given from across the Growth Hub Network by Business Guides
and Navigators working remotely.
Comprehensive details from the survey plus other intelligence gathered is
distributed weekly to Leadership Gloucestershire.
A remote events programme is in place up until the end of July 2020, with
over 50 events planned across the network. There has been a good level of
take up and demand for these events.
Feedback on the support provided by the Growth Hub Network during this
difficult period for businesses has been excellent.
Cyber Park (WCTIS), Cheltenham: Public Share events were due to be held in
March for Phases 3 & 4 of WCTIS and for West of Cheltenham Walking and
Cycling Improvements (WCWCI) to share current proposals and seek
feedback from key stakeholders and members of the public. However,
regrettably these had to be cancelled due to the restrictions on social
distancing, we have redirected stakeholders to provide feedback online.
New website launched - www.goldenvalleyuk.com
Blackfriars and Quayside, Gloucester: The Shire Hall (Gloucestershire County
Council HQ) refurbishment scheme, that formed part of the regeneration

Page 33

















project has been shortlisted for the South West RICS (Royal Institute of
Chartered Surveyors) Social Impact Awards 2020.
Farm 491, Cirencester: The team have adapted its season of events exploring
the future of British Farming to comply with the UK’s Covid-19 social
distancing measures. The organisation has developed a programme of
webinars, many of which will be available to everyone, with a few select
online events being held exclusively for its members.
UK:DRIC, Gloucester: During these uncertain times with Covid-19, positive
conversations continue to take place between GFirst LEP and Gloucester City
Council and there is reassurance provided that Gloucester City are still very
much in favour of leading the project, but currently and understandably this
is not their main priority focus area.
Hartpury University, Tech to Plate: Due to Covid-19, engagements have been
cancelled initially until 1st July. The team have transitioned their face to face
work to online with a significant ‘Tech Talk’ week running w/c 11th May.
Merrywalks Shopping Centre, Stroud: The contractors have now put a plan
in place to safely return to site week commencing May 11th. They will initially
restart work on the top deck of the multi-storey car park. This phase of work
will extend the area of car parking into the space previously occupied by the
glazed canopy at Five Valleys.
Work is also due to start later in the year on the new £4.9 million Medical
Centre which will be part of the wider improvements to the town centre,
contracts were exchanged in March and tenders will be going out at the end
of May. The new surgery building on King Street will entail the total
refurbishment of the existing Poundland unit.
St Barnabas Transport Scheme: This scheme has been withdrawn by the
promoter, GCC, so the £1m funding is subject to a reallocation, with £550k
being committed to the Gloucester Railway Station project.
A419 Stonehouse Improvements: Works are now currently taking place at
Horsetrough roundabout and Downton Road junctions. Temporary Traffic
Management is working well with the current reduced traffic throughout the
site.
Lydney Cycling Scheme: Contractor is continuing to work through the
snagging list whilst observing social distancing requirements under the
Coronavirus lockdown. Positive feedback received from various members of
the public now that the scheme is complete.
Gloucester SW By-Pass Widening: The proposed Public Inquiry date of May
19th for the Compulsory Purchase Order has been postponed by the Planning
Inspectorate (PINS) as a result of the ongoing global pandemic. The
promoters are in weekly contact with the DfT casework team in an effort to
understand when a new date will be set. There is currently no revised date

Page 34





from PINs. If all objections can be resolved/withdrawn ahead of any new
inquiry date, this public inquiry will not be necessary. GCC has formally
responded back to the seven objections received and is working with City
Business Centre to agree Heads of Terms. The GCC project team have written
to freeholders and tenants to make it clear that the council has no intention
of pressurising businesses to find alternative premises at this difficult and
unique time, but to also reiterate the intention to acquire the necessary land
and the willingness to work now with those who have identified alternative
business premises.
Gloucestershire Airport, Anson Park: Due to the change of key personnel at
the Airport, as well as the current pandemic, there has been a slight delay in
terms of proceeding with the Funding Agreement. Detailed discussions have
taken place with the promoter and reassurances have been provided that
there is full commitment and enthusiasm to proceed with the project.
There is now agreement to work towards the end of June deadline for
completing and signing the Funding Agreement so that funds can flow and
work on site commence in earnest.
Gloucester Railway Station: Due to the £1m St Barnabas Transport Scheme
being withdrawn by the promoters, £550k Local Growth Fund has been
re-allocated to this project meaning that they will now receive a grant of
£4.3m, subject to LEP Board Approval. The project is at Due Diligence stage
and will be going ahead of the Investment Panel in June and then presented
to the LEP Board Meeting on July 14th 2020.

3) EU Inward Investment Programme Activity Report – ‘Invest in Gloucestershire’
This is the collaborative bid with the County Council and the six District Councils supported
by ERDF European funding to set up a dedicated team to focus on inward investment in the
county, in particular (non- EU) foreign direct investment.
The overall project value is £1 million with 50% coming via ERDF and is for a period of 3
years – January 2019 to December 2021.
The focus is on four key sectors; Cyber, Agri-Tech, Advanced Engineering & Manufacturing &
Renewables.
Unfortunately, due to the Covid-19 pandemic, all the international events through 2020
where we had planned to have a presence and ‘fly the flag’ for Gloucestershire have been
cancelled. These included MIPIM in France, the Farnborough International Air Show,
Hanover Messe and a trade trip to South Korea.
The project’s attention is currently focussed on working up our Advanced Manufacturing
proposition for the county, as well as working with the Department for International Trade

Page 35

(DiT) on High Potential Opportunities (HPO) for both the Cyber Sector and the Agri-Tech
sector.
(NB - An HPO is where DiT identifies Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) opportunities that have
yet to achieve their full potential. DIT’s global network of sector and specialist insight is then
combined with partners’ local knowledge to build a much more clearly defined and
differentiated proposition to be promoted by DIT staff in overseas posts.)
4) Local Industrial Strategy (LIS)
Our Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) was a matter of days/weeks away from being finally
signed off by central Government. The draft had successfully passed through the Local
Industrial Strategy Analysts Panel (LISA), the Logic Chains had been approved and the
Commitments spreadsheet completed. Sadly then, we were all hit by the Covid-19
pandemic. Understandably, sign off has now been paused, awaiting further guidance from
BEIS on next steps.
Our view would be that a Covid-19 Recovery Plan/Addendum should be included as part of
our final LIS. Our LIS was evidenced based and the key priorities were widely supported by
the private, public and voluntary sectors and we are comfortable that the priority sectors
highlighted in the draft LIS would sit comfortably for Gloucestershire in a post Covid-19
world.

Ends

Page 36

Growth Deal Projects 'Forward Look'

Key Milestones (pipeline schemes)

(Based on latest information at time of publication)

Assessment/Due Diligence

Apr-20

Inv Panel/LEP Board

Rev 25

Funding agreement (subject to board approval)

Notes

Formal project launch

All pipeline projects are still subject to investment appraisal and LEP Board approval

Start of construction/implementation

** Original GLTB scheme
***Re-allocated scheme
FY 2018/19 Q3

FY 2019/20 Q2

FY 2020/21 Q1

FY 2020/21 Q2

2019

Network of Growth Hubs across the
county

£4.400

Merrywalks Centre Stroud***

Business
Support

Re-development of the Merrywalks
Shopping Center and Car-Park

£3.000

Gloucs Airport Anson Park
Development***

Enabling
Infrastructure

Access road from B4063 to expand
Anson Park

£1.885

WCTIS (Cyber Park) Phase 1

Enabling
Infrastructure

A40 Corridor Mitigation Schemes Arle Court Improvements

£9.230

Programme Development and Scheme Approvals

Due Diligence

Inv Panel/
Board

Funding
Agreement

Project
Launch

Construction
start

Construction Phase

WCTIS (Cyber Park) Phase 2

Enabling
Infrastructure

A40 Corridor Mitigation Schemes Widening E/B A40 M5 Jct 11- Arle
Court

£4.480

Programme Development and Scheme Approvals

Due Diligence

Inv Panel/
Board

Funding
Agreement

Project
Launch

Construction
start

Construction Phase

WCTIS (Cyber Park) Phases 3 & 4

Enabling
Infrastructure

A40 Corridor Mitigation Schemes Widening Arle Court to Benhall Rbt
and Benhall Rbt to Griffiths Avenue

£8.290

Programme Development and Scheme Approvals

Due Diligence

Inv Panel/
Board

Funding
Agreement

West Cheltenham Walking and
Cycling Improvements

Enabling
Infrastructure

Upgrade to the B4063/Old Gloucester
Road junction

£1.600

Scheme Development

Final Business Case Due Diligence

Inv Panel /
Board

Funding
Agreement

Gloucester Railway Station
Improvements***

Enabling
Infrastructure

Redevelopment of underpass,
frontage and car park access

£3.750

Inv Panel/
Board

Funding
Agreement

Housing

Traffic mitigation to release a strategic
housing site

£4.530

Design & Planning

A419 Stonehouse Improvements

Transport

Junction improvements along A419
between M5 J13 and Stonehouse

£4.360

Detailed design, planning and procurement phase

Gloucester South West By Pass

Transport

Widening of Llanthony Road section
of South West bypass.

£2.000

Cheltenham Spa Railway
Station**

Transport

Improvement to station forecourt,
additional parking and
cycle/pedestrian access to A40

£1.497

Lydney Transport Strategy

Transport

Local junction improvements and
cycle access

£1.000

St Barnabas Roundabout

Transport

Roundabout upgrade, improved
cycling safety

Hartpury College Tech to
Plate***

Innovation

Application of Digital Productivity
Tools in Livestock Management

£1.000

Abbeymead /Metz Way**

Transport

Junction & Pedestrian Crossing
upgrades (smart signals)

£0.500

UK Digital Retail Innovation
Centre

Business
Support

Retail skills & digital high street pilot
scheme

£0.400

Blackfriars & Quayside

Housing

De-risking and preparation of site for
development

£4.130

Investment/Development Phase

Gloucester Transport Hub**

Transport

New Transport Hub for Gloucester &
highways mods

£6.400

In Operation

Growth Hub Expansion

Business
Support

Expanded Core Growth Hub and New
Business School @ UoG

£5.000

In Delivery

Skills

Funding to support build of new
Gloscol campus in Cinderford

£2.600

In Delivery

A40 Over Roundabout **

Transport

Widening approaches to the
roundabout & provision of a third
circulatory lane

£2.230

In Operation

Farm 491

Business
Support

Agri-tech innovation and business
incubator centre (RAU)

£2.920

In Delivery

Elmbridge (Tail End Major DfT
scheme)*

Transport

Major roundabout upgrade A40, key
strategic route.

£9.070

In Operation

Berkley Green Cyber Security
Centre

Skills

Cyber Security skills centre, dual
location UoG & Berkely

£3.000

In Delivery

Transport

Replacement Northbound bridge

£1.990

In Operation

Enabling
Infrastructure

Access road enabling new college
campus and first phase of
development of Northern Qtr,

£3.800

In Operation

Skills

Gloucs Renewable Energy,
Engineering & Nuclear Skills Centre

£5.000

In Delivery

Enabling
Infrastructure

New access road to open up land for
development

£0.550

In Operation

Skills

STEM teaching facility upgrades at 5
sites across Gloucs.

£2.096

In Delivery

Total LGF Awarded to GFirst

£101.716

* DfT 'Retained' schemes

£12.370

Total LGF Reporting to BEIS

£89.346

Page 37

GREEN Skills Centre
Gloucs Airport South Camp
Gloucestershire STEM centres

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

2021

Business
Support

Cinderford Northern Link Road

Jan

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Three further Tier 2 Hubs in development & due to open in 2020. Stroud and Forest of Dean to open Spring 2020. Cheltenham due to open in Summer 2020.
Est
Completion
Final Business Case - Due
Diligence

Planning Stage

Planning Stage

Inv Panel/
Board

Due Diligence

Inv Panel/
Board

Due Diligence
Project
Launch

Funding Agreement

Construction
start

Construction Phase

Project
Launch

Construction
start

Project
Launch

Inv Panel

Board

Funding
Agreement

Est
Completion

Project
Launch

Construction
start

Construction Phase

Construction Phase
Construction Phase

Soft Launch'

Construction
start

In Operation

In Operation

Est
Completion

In Delivery

Completion

Construction Phase

In Operation

Scheme Withdrawn by Promoters

Funding
Agreement

In Operation

Construction Construction
start
Phase

Construction Phase

£1.000

Est
Completion

Est
Completion

Est
Completion

Construction Phase
Project
Launch

Mar

Construction Phase

Construction Phase

Construction Phase

Project
Launch

Feb

Project
Launch

Detailed Design, Land Aquisition & Planning
Funding
Agreement

Jan

In Delivery

Project
Launch

Funding Agreement

Full Business Case Development

Dec

In Delivery (full network)

In phased construction programme.

Full Business Case Development

FY 2020/21 Q4

2020

Growth Hub Network

A38 Berkeley Bridges

Dec

FY 2020/21 Q3

Summary

Gloucestershire College New
Campus (Cinderford)

Nov

FY 2019/20 Q4

Category

N/A

Oct

FY 2019/20 Q3

Project Title

A40 Innsworth Gateway

£m's

FY 2019/20 Q1

2018

LGF
RAG Rating

FY 2018/19 Q4

In Operation

Completion
Formal
Launch

In Delivery

In Operation

This page is intentionally left blank

Gloucestershire Growth Deal Projects Summary

Key

As at 27/04/2020

Funding approved and progressing
Funding allocated but pending final board approval

Current Total Forecasts with Actuals where available

Project Name

Growth Fund

Category

Homes

Total jobs

Private
Leverage £m's

Public Sector
Leverage £m's

Commercial
Floorspace m2

Employment
Land Ha

Skills
Capital m2

App'ships

BCR (Road
schemes)

Page 39

Growth Hub Amalgamated

£

9,400,000

Business Support

0

6644

£0.00

£26.0

2127

0

3800

0

N/A

Merrywalks Centre, Stroud*

£

3,000,000

Business Support

0

500

£27.0

£0.0

20292

1.37

0

0

N/A

Farm 491

£

2,920,000

Business Support

0

207

£0.8

£0.0

1380

0

0

0

N/A

Glos Airport Anson Park Development*

£

1,885,000

Business Support

0

85

£7.0

£0.0

7500

4

0

0

N/A

Glos Airport South Camp

£

550,000

Business Support

0

106

£9.7

£0.0

12000

6.8

0

0

N/A

UK Digital Retail Innovation Centre

£

400,000

Business Support

0

50

£0.2

£0.0

550

0

150

0

N/A

Cheltenham Cyber Park *

£

22,000,000

Enabling Infrastructure

1100

7500

£50.0

£0.0

40000

45

0

0

N/A

Cinderford Northern Link Road

£

3,800,000

Enabling Infrastructure

110

0

£0.0

£5.3

0

2

0

0

N/A

Gloucester Railway Station Improvements*

£

4,330,000

Enabling Infrastructure

200

300

£7.7

£0.6

10000

5.3

0

0

N/A

A40 Innsworth Gateway*

£

4,530,000

Housing

1300

630

£3.3

£0.0

5000

8.3

0

0

TBC

Blackfriars & Quayside

£

4,130,000

Housing

250

45

£85.0

£12.0

4000

2.5

0

0

N/A

Hartpury College, Tech-to-Plate

£

1,000,000

Innovation

0

0

£0.0

£0.0

0

0.0

1415

0

N/A

GREEN Skills Centre

£

5,000,000

Skills

0

125

£19.5

£15.1

0

10.7

4401

300

N/A

Berkeley Green Cyber Security Centre

£

3,000,000

Skills

0

129

£4.0

£0.4

1461

0

1461

213

N/A

Cinderford - New Gloscol Campus *

£

2,600,000

Skills

55

150

£0.0

£12.5

0

0

6000

0

N/A

Gloucestershire STEM centres

£

2,096,000

Skills

0

0

£0.0

£3.8

0

0

6141

1064

N/A

Elmbridge (Tail-end Major road scheme)

£

9,070,000

Transport

0

0

£0.0

£5.2

0

0

0

0

5

Gloucester Transport Hub **

£

6,400,000

Transport

100

0

£40.0

£8.8

1000

0

0

0

N/A

A419 Stonehouse Improvements

£

4,360,000

Transport

0

0

£0.0

£0.0

0

0

0

0

18

A40 Over Roundabout **

£

2,230,000

Transport

0

0

£0.1

£0.5

0

0

0

0

5

Gloucester South West By Pass

£

2,000,000

Transport

0

0

£0.1

£5.3

0

0

0

0

12

Berkeley Bridge Replacement

£

1,990,000

Transport

0

0

£0.0

£1.0

0

0

0

0

5

West Cheltenham Walking and Cycling

£

1,600,000

Transport

0

0

£0.0

£0.0

0

0

0

0

TBC

Cheltenham Spa Railway Station **

£

1,497,000

Transport

0

0

£1.8

£0.2

0

0

0

0

TBC

Lydney Cycling Improvements

£

1,000,000

Transport

0

0

£0.0

£0.0

0

0

0

0

TBC

St Barnabas Roundabout - scheme withdrawn by promoters
(£1m).
£450k re-allocation.
(£550k re-allocated to Gloucester Railway Station)

£

450,000

Transport

0

0

£0.0

£0.0

0

0

0

0

TBC

Abbeymead /Metz Way **

£

500,000

Transport

0

0

£1.0

£1.2

0

0

0

0

4

£

101,738,000

3115

16471

£257.2

£97.9

105310

86.0

23368

1577

2255

14280

N/A

75.3

N/A

1014

Forecast Totals*
Full Programme Commitment
* for GD3 schemes includes outcomes post 2021
** Original GLTB scheme

£285.8

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF AN
ECONOMIC RECOVERY STRATEGY FOR GLOUCESTERSHIRE
Meeting

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Report authors

Mike Dawson
Email: mike.dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk
Colin Chick
Email: colin.chick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Background
documents
Location/Contact
for inspection of
background
documents
Main consultees

Planned dates
Purpose of report

1. Gloucestershire Vision 2050 (Link in appendix)
2. GFirst LEP (draft) Local Industrial Strategy (Link in appendix)
3. GEGJC Senior Officer Group Briefing Note (In appendix)
As listed above or on request from the report author.

This paper has been produced in consultation with the lead officers
represented at the Gloucestershire EGJC Senior Officer Group. It has also
been shared with GFirst LEP and the lead officer for the Local Resilience
Forum.
The report covers the early stages of the recovery phase of Covid-19.
This report:
1. Provides an update on the activity currently being undertaken by the
County, Districts, Borough and City Councils in Gloucestershire;
2. Sets out the proposed governance arrangements for C-19 recovery
planning;
3. Establishes the overall principles for the economic recovery; and
4. Poses key questions for discussion.

Recommendations

The Joint Committee resolves to:
Note the content of the paper and the overall approach to Gloucestershire’s
economic recovery from C-19.

Reasons for
recommendations
Resource
Implications

To inform and seek agreement from the Joint Committee as the responsible
body for the economic recovery.
The resource implications required are yet to be defined. As more business
and employment data and intelligence become available, a programme of
recovery will be developed. There may need to be some internal as well as
external resources required to support this.

Page 41

1. Background
Covid-19 has created an unprecedented economic shock and the full impact of it is
unlikely to be known for years to come. It requires a coherent, coordinated and
comprehensive plan of action in order to preserve jobs and sustain businesses.
There is a growing consensus that a three-stage process is needed to consider what
action and activity may be required to support the economy going forward. These
stages are:






Addressing the immediate crisis (short term) – a role played by the Recovery
Cell which has been overseeing and helping to co-ordinate the immediate needs
of businesses and local communities.
A potentially lengthy period of transition (medium term) – an unknown
timeframe, expected to last for 18-months and supported by existing structures
within the County Council, with matters referred, by exception, to the Recovery
Cell.
The emergence of a new normal – the longer-term, business as usual approach
with amended structures as required.

There is both a need and an opportunity to think creatively about how to use the
transition to effectively develop, test and learn about new ways of working, including
different forms of collaboration and partnership. The impact on the economy is central
to this and as such, partners such as the LEP, the rest of the public sector together with
the private sector must work together to shape the response.
2. Overarching objective
Central to this approach is a need to focus on the economy and the support that will be
necessary to stem anticipated unemployment, the dilution of sectoral strengths and the
loss of valuable local businesses. While the true extent of the recession has yet to play
out, evidence is slowly becoming available, through national data sets, business
surveys and interviews, to help understand what needs to happen next.
Gloucestershire has a good baseline of information, built up from the recent evidence
base and analysis created for the Local Industrial Strategy. This will help to understand
where the greatest opportunities and threats may lie in the future and in this regard, is
due to be revisited by the LEP. The data required to inform this future action plan is at
present ad hoc as government data sets are still being developed, but with more
becoming available on a weekly basis.
Decisions made about investment in the transition phase will need to be evidence led,
coordinated and complementary. The County has an opportunity to learn from the
recent experience and build on the needs of businesses and developers to sustain the
economy in the short to medium-term and also to plan effectively for the ‘new normal’.

Page 42

3. Activity to date
Given the fundamental impact of the pandemic, partners across the County are
considering their recovery plans and seeking to understand local challenges and
opportunities to rebuild the economy.
There are multiple layers to the economic recovery. This emerging family of strategies
and activity plans will need to be well coordinated and clearly identify spatial strengths
and weaknesses in order to inform a common set of ‘recovery principles’ and direct
potential areas for collaboration, strategic intervention and investment activities.
The County Council has a strategic role to facilitate the overall response, coordinate
activity across partners and ensure investment can come forward and is appropriately
targeted, through lobbying for new powers and resources and guiding local decisionmaking. It will also identify gaps in the emerging evidence base and advise on the
overall monitoring required to ensure the County’s recovery can be tracked.
As a complement, Local Councils are focusing very much on an immediate locality
response and have each developed, or plan to develop, a recovery framework, or
action plan to respond to this.
Meanwhile, the LEP is developing an overarching economic recovery strategy (see
agenda item 12) which is informed by the partners and will set out the path to a longerterm resilient economy. This will be built from local intelligence and in coordination with
partners across the public, private and third sector.
There is an emerging set of themes and priorities at a locality level which is beginning
to form the basis of recovery activity. These can be summarised as below:
 A system-wide approach is required in order to support the C-19 transition and
future recovery with a focus on strong leadership, coordination, access to
resources and an ability to share learning. Core themes of green growth/clean
growth are central so far.
 Sectors emerging as high priority include:
o Aerospace / Aviation and Advanced Manufacturing
o Visitor Economy
o Construction
o Retail and high streets
o Agriculture
o Lower value sectors are considered key as they represent higher volumes
of employment in localities
 A central theme is integrating activity and policy within existing strategies
highlighted as:
o Economic development (emerging Local Industrial Strategy)
o Planning framework
o Environment and climate change
o Health and wellbeing
o Asset Based Community Development

Page 43








o Housing strategy
Key issues raised by businesses have consistently included cashflow and a lack
of an online platform from which to continue trading. Overall business resilience
is considered low and this is a priority for most council plans.
Challenges identified at a spatial level highlight rural areas, market towns as well
as town centres as being highly impacted.
At a community level, the digital divide is seen as a threat and an opportunity (a
threat in relation to access and capability of residents and an opportunity for
business development within education and other sectors).
The need for data and evidence has been highlighted as a priority.

4. Areas for collaborative action
As outlined above, a three-phase approach has been recommended – addressing the
immediate or short-term crisis; a potentially lengthy period of transition; and a longerterm ‘new normal’. With the work underway at District, Borough, City and County levels,
set out below is the suggested first set of activity within the transition phase which is
considered core.
The LEP has already committed to a review of the Local Industrial Strategy and the
commissioning of additional research, however insight and additional capability
accessed through SOG and the GEGJC will strengthen the evidence available and help
target planned interventions. The detail of the required inputs and contributors will need
to be considered in each case.
Short-term (to July)
 Establish the principles of the recovery – across strategic documents1, there are
central themes of retention of young people, environmental and low carbon
industries, cyber-tech and improving the overall skills base. It could also be an
opportunity to develop the health and social care market to address the County’s
ageing population, growth potential in the sector and lead by example
considering the County’s commissioning power and more positive learning
experiences from C-19.
 Develop an evidence base which seeks to address data and business
intelligence gaps and begins to understand where the greatest challenges and
opportunities lie.
 Mapping and agreement of the overarching governance of the C-19 Economic
Recovery Roadmap.
 Determine the resources required for future targeted intervention and the
process for agreeing this investment.
 Review planned investment in current economic growth initiatives to ensure
outcomes for C-19 recovery and future relevance and resilience.

1

Drawn from Draft Local Industrial Strategy and Vision 2050 Gloucestershire

Page 44

Medium-term (July to December)
 Working alongside GFirst LEP in the creation of a multi-layered plan which
meets the long-term needs of the County including core areas of advanced
manufacturing/aviation, employment and skills, planning/land use, digital access
and connectivity, business support and climate change.
 Review of County’s asset base to consider how best to repurpose facilities and
support new ways of working, for example libraries, leisure facilities and office
spaces.
 Review of public sector commissioning activities and buying power and
developing a local framework to identify opportunities for local companies.
 Ways to enhance local sourcing by developing new models of supply chain
brokerage to support medium-term challenges of accessing raw materials (and
the secondary Brexit impact expected in 20212).
 Explore new emerging policy drivers for apprenticeships, Shared Prosperity
Fund, social investment and community wealth building, to inform/position plans
and activities for the longer term.
Long-term (December onwards)
 Deliver investment in targeted parts of the economy to drive higher levels of
productivity, encourage employment and self-employment and also add value to
long-term ambitions of quality environment and inclusive growth.
5. Governance
In order to lead the economic recovery of the County, it is proposed that the current
governance model is used to manage the recovery process. This would include GEGJC
overseeing the strategy development and delivery, as the principal partnership based
economic co-ordination forum, with the Senior Officer Group, a group of senior officers
responsible for economic growth, managing the operational strategy.
It is also proposed that a Gloucestershire County Transition Group is established. This
group will support SOG with economic recovery items, while keeping the wider
Recovery Cell and Leadership Gloucestershire up to date with linked items such as
community development, health and wellbeing etc. This will include:
 Fortnightly working group/transition meeting involving key senior officers.
 The creation of a data dashboard which can be updated on a fortnightly basis to
include the latest release of government data, modelling and local intelligence.
 Consideration of best practice from external sources and as it arises, to consider
effective ways of working, new investment vehicles and scope for the
realignment of projects and programmes to support local communities and
employers.
 Development of logic chains to build up modelled data and activity statements to
understand where targeted investment may need to take place and where
interventions may be required.
https://home.kpmg/xx/en/home/insights/2018/10/how-will-brexit-impact-my-supply-chain-andwarehouses.html The 31 December 2020 Brexit Transition date is anticipated to cause additional challenges
around logistics, delivery times of raw materials as well as higher costs.
2

Page 45

 Regular analysis of a SWOT at a County and District/Borough level to consider
and inform opportunities as well as threats.
 Scope to build on GCC experience of operating a loan investment scheme for
the LEP and to extend the operating model to offer a wider debt and equity
business recovery fund.
This group could involve District, Borough and City representatives, as well as the LEP,
with GCC leading the co-ordination and strategic input. Any overlap with structures
emerging through GFirst will need to be considered in order to reduce duplication and
improve the co-ordination of activity.

Page 46

Appendix 1
1. Gloucestershire Vision 2050 https://www.glos2050.com
2. GFirst LEP (draft) Local Industrial Strategy https://www.gfirstlep.com/industrialstrategy/
3. GEGJC Senior Officer Group Briefing Note (Attached)

Page 47

This page is intentionally left blank

Gloucestershire Post-Covid Economic Recovery Briefing April 2020
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee Senior Officer Group

1. Introduction
Covid-19 has created an unprecedented economic shock and the full impact of it is unlikely to be
known for years to come. It requires a coherent, coordinated and comprehensive plan of action in
order to preserve jobs and sustain businesses.
There is a growing consensus that a three-stage process is needed to consider what action and
activity needs to support the economy going forward. These stages are:






Addressing the immediate crisis (short term) – a role played by the Glos Local Resilience
Forum (LRF) Recovery Cell which has been overseeing and helping to co-ordinate the
immediate needs of businesses and local communities.
A potentially lengthy period of transition (medium term) – an unknown timeframe, expected
to last for 18-months and supported by existing structures within the County Council, with
matters referred, by exception, to the Recovery Cell.
The emergence of a new normal – (longer-term) business as usual approach with amended
structures as required.

There is both a need and an opportunity to think creatively about how to use the transition to
develop, test and learn about new ways of working, including new forms of collaboration and
partnership. The impact on the economy is central to this and as such partners such as the LEP, the
rest of the public sector together with the private sector must work together to shape the response.
The transition may, however, require a period of focus on business resilience before returning to a
period of growth and development. It is helpful to consider this when developing new plans and
ideas.

2. The economic position pre-COVID
Gloucestershire has a good baseline of information. It has been built up over time for local plan and
Joint Core Strategy preparation as well as through the evidence base and analysis created for the
Local Industrial Strategy. The data that has been taken from these documents below starts to set the
scene in relation to the challenges that may lie ahead.
Gloucestershire has a healthy job-density at 0.88 jobs for every Gloucestershire resident. The size
and structure of its business base is broadly consistent with the national average, if slightly skewed
towards small and micro-enterprises. Businesses employing under 50 people comprise 97.3% of the
business base, compared to 97.2% in the SW region and 97% across England.
Business formation (+15%) has performed more highly than employment growth performance (+6%)
over the last 10-years with variations across sectors. Up to statistic available for 2018/19,
Gloucestershire had been facing a tightening labour market as the employment activity rate had
risen to over 80 per cent, sitting above neighbouring LEPs (78-79 per cent), the SW Region (78.7 per
cent) and the National rate (75.4 per cent). The proportion of these people working full-time is

Page 49

slightly below the SW Region proportion of 71.8 per cent, but well below the national proportion of
75.1 per cent.1
There had also been recent growth in commercial floorspace across Gloucestershire with 60 per cent
of total space dedicated to industrial uses compared to 55 per cent in England. This reflects the
relative specialisation in manufacturing, and the more rural character favouring industrial business
parks relatively more over office and retail. Growth has been particularly strong in Tewkesbury,
Gloucester and Stroud with high levels of office and retail in Cheltenham and Gloucester.
In considering the key components of the local economy, a picture of where the greatest threats and
opportunities in the short, medium and long-term might lie will become apparent.

3. Considering economic impact in the transition phase
There are several sources of information which can help to build up a picture of the economic
impact at a national, regional and local level. This information will improve over time as the UK
Government is able to publish real data linking job losses, business closures and sector information.
At a national level, output across goods and services fell to record lows in April with non-food retail
falling significantly and levels of online clothing and household goods not replacing physical sales.
PWC are predicting that the UK’s GDP will decline between -5 and -10 per cent (GDP contraction
post financial crisis was -4 per cent). The short-term impact is predicted to be even more significant
with contraction somewhere between 12 per cent to 16 per cent quarter on quarter in Q2 2020
respectively. There will be a disproportionate impact on certain sectors compared to others but the
full extent of this won’t be known for some time.
Demand for retail, office and industrial space has also been the topic of much debate with a sharp
fall in transactional activity within retail and hotels, favourable terms for occupiers (particularly in
retail) and as yet, unimpacted rents. At a sector level, Saville’s are reporting healthcare, logistics and
to a lesser extent institutional residential demand to be among the most resilient sectors across
demand and investment.
Decisions made about investment in the transition phase must be evidence led. The County has an
opportunity to learn from the recent experience and build on the needs of businesses and
developers to sustain the economy in the short to medium-term and also to plan effectively for the
‘new normal’.
Gloucestershire has a good baseline of information, built up from the recent evidence base and
analysis created for the Local Industrial Strategy. This will help to understand where the greatest
opportunities and threats may lie in the future and in this regard, is due to be revisited by the LEP.
The data required to inform Gloucestershire’s recovery plan is at present ad hoc, but with more
becoming available on a weekly basis. It includes:


1

Council led: The Councils across Gloucestershire have been issuing grants, rate relief and
interruption loans across the County and are monitoring the amount given against
government criteria. Each Council will have a sense of, or even direct engagement with
businesses in difficulty, but this information is still emerging, at a District/Borough level and
also yet to be pooled.

Shared Intelligence’s evidence base for GFirst’s Local Industrial Strategy preparation

Page 50







LEP-led: GFirst LEP continues to engage with businesses through the Growth Hub and
through business surveys online and on the phone. This is valuable qualitative intelligence
which will support requirements for short and long-term investments. A weekly update is
available summarising this information. The LEP is also intending to commission some
economic modelling to understand the ongoing challenges faced and to develop a plan of
action.
Government-led: This primarily relates to a small number of sources in relation to specific
Covid matters, although it should be noted that there is an inherent lag in terms of the
availability of nationally published data o Office of National Statistics (ONS) in relation to the number and sector profile of
furloughed employees and businesses that are continuing to trade. This is currently
being published every two weeks at a national level. It is not yet possible to
accurately forecast the data for Gloucestershire, but modelling can build up a
picture and help to inform what plans need to be considered. The trading data is
survey based so there is also a fairly large margin of error if disaggregated to a
Gloucestershire level and below. Nonetheless, it provides a helpful point from which
to build as the survey grows.
o Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) will continue to release data relating to
the number of people on employment benefits every month and the data for claims,
starts, and households quarterly. This may start to be released more regularly. It will
somewhat mask the reality of the self-employed but will be useful in understanding
large increases in unemployment and emerging trends.
Sector/geography led: Economists and think tanks have over the last few weeks been
preparing scenarios, often looking across the country at the potential impact of Covid-19.
There are two such examples in the appendix to this paper. One which looks at the decline in
GVA and another which considered UK-wide data on furloughed workers to build a local
scenario.

Gloucestershire has a good baseline of information from which to build its own scenario planning.
Communities and demographics at greatest risk of financial and economic exclusion also need to be
considered in planning for Gloucestershire’s recovery. This will help to understand where the
greatest opportunities and threats may lie in the future and how support can be given to support
‘left behind’ people and places.

4. Learning from others
There are expected to be many challenges to address in the next 18-months. Developing ways to
collaborate, learn from good practice and understand the challenges of the economy going forward
will be central to ensuring this is done in a comprehensive way. The Local Government Association,
County Council’s Network and the District Councils Network are also publishing regular information
on their websites and have established a number of task and finish groups as well as Regional
Recovery Groups (such as the South West Recovery Group chaired by Mike Dawson).
The LGA has developed a tool which considers area characteristics relating to employment, income
and health deprivation alongside communities which are most or least likely to be impacted by
Covid2.
2

https://lginform.local.gov.uk/reports/view/lga-research/covid-19-cases-and-area-characteristics

Page 51

There are also a number of initiatives that have been established to tackle these some of the local
challenges faced, with potential transferability to other localities or sectors within the economy.
Many councils and LEPs are preparing 10-point plans, online or telephone surveys and are
establishing Taskforce Groups to tackle local issues.
Rent relief in commercial buildings in Lambeth and a Business Improvement District guarantee
Lambeth Council’s owns and manages SME workspace in Brixton. It runs on a ‘Buy, Give, Work’
model which means for every space that is occupied by a commercially focused business, space is
given to another business or social enterprise which promotes diversity, inclusiveness or innovation.
Each employee is asked to give an hour of their time per month to skill share, mentor or attend an
event. At the first sign of Covid-19 lockdown, Lambeth issued a 3-month rent-relief for over 300
SMEs to support their survival. The council has also developed a Business Improvement District
Guarantee to address the anticipated reduction in income as a result of retail closure and furloughed
office workers. This will enable the BID to keep functioning and supporting high streets and
industrial areas.
Buckinghamshire LEP additional investment
Buckinghamshire LEP, alongside Buckinghamshire Council and Buckinghamshire Business First, made
an additional £2 million funding available to support businesses affected by Covid. The fund, which
has used recycled Growing Places Funding plus a small contribution from Growth Hub core funding
for the year 2020/2021, complements government initiatives and aims to support those businesses
needing emergency assistance. Businesses with concerns about their future and the impact of Covid
on their business, can visit the website bbf.uk.com/covid-19 where the most up-to-date advice and
support is being collated, including full details of the funding criteria and online application.
Virtual Library York3
Since the COVID-19 outbreak started, online library memberships have grown by as much as 600 per
cent in some areas. With online books and other digital services proving of special interest to
residents during lockdown measures, the City of York Council has provided library service partners
(Explore York) £17,000 of funding to expand the range of virtual services available. The additional
funding will grant library members access to:





an extended range of e-books and e-audiobooks
Press Reader, including access to 7000+ daily newspaper and magazine
Virtual Rooms Explore, which uses video conferencing software to create a virtual space for
group discussion (including local book groups and artists spaces are in the future), and
support for residents who are isolated, vulnerable and/or residents with limited access to
virtual content due to lack of skills/experience with technology or lack of broadband
(currently in development).

Greater London Authority – ‘Pay it forward’ scheme
This scheme4 offers a free crowdfunding platform to encourage consumers to pre-purchase goods
and services from local businesses as well as raise the profile of businesses. Vouchers are issued and
can generally be redeemed once lockdown permits. This initiative cashflow and as it is an e-

3
4

https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/coronavirus-information-councils/covid-19-good-council-practice
https://payitforward.london.gov.uk/

Page 52

commerce platform, it removes barriers for individual businesses who may not already operate in
this way.
SME Loan Funds
Councils and LEPs operating loan funds, are considering which businesses may not be eligible for
mainstream funding, government grants and Covid funding through the British Business Banks. The
gaps in the funding market are being closed by council and LEP-backed investment with varying
terms and conditions to account for the higher-risk nature of the funds.

5. Gloucestershire’s proposed approach
Facilitated through the Senior Officer Group (SOG) and informed by Gloucestershire Economic
Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC), the evidence base is beginning to be built. A briefing paper which
will be presented to SOG in May will set out the current economic position, an outline of available
data as well as best practice from other parts of the Country and internationally.
A facilitated discussion will take place at SOG to:


Gather experience across all parties to understand lived experiences and gather
emerging need and local intelligence;
 Understand the roles of the various stakeholders and help to inform the future recovery
approach;
 Start to detail the planning and support required to protect jobs and businesses to build
resilience and reset the economy.
The output of this will be presented to GEGJC at the 3rd June meeting.
This will require investment of internal and external resources to develop a short and long-term
strategy. It should be a living document which is informed on a weekly or fortnightly basis to
capitalise on the latest information available. It is recommended that this includes:









Internal GCC resource for a fortnightly transition meeting involving key senior officers,
participant suggestions as appended
The creation of a data dashboard which can be updated on a fortnightly basis to include the
latest release of government data, modelling and local intelligence
Consideration of best practice from external sources to consider new ways of working, new
investment vehicles and scope for the realignment of projects and programmes to support
communities and employers
Development of logic chains to build up modelled data and activity statements to
understand where investment may need to take place and where interventions may be
required
Regular analysis of a SWOT at a County and District/Borough level to consider and inform
opportunities as well as threats
Scope to build on GCC experience of operating a loan investment scheme for the LEP and
extend model to offer a wider debt and equity business recovery fund

Page 53

Appendix 1 – Examples of modelled data
In a study by the Centre for Progressive Policy5 for example, which has modelled GVA from figures
released by the Office for Budget Responsibility (OBR), it predicts a significant variation in impact on
Gloucestershire economies. This is ranked against councils in England.
Modelled decline
in GVA

Rank
(England
comparator)

Region

LA name

South West

Stroud

44%

196

South West

Forest of Dean

43%

39

South West

Tewkesbury

41%

77

South West

Cheltenham

35%

248

South West

Cotswold

32%

322

South West

Gloucester

31%

347

At a local level, modelled data will need to inform decision-making in the short-term. For example,
data released by the ONS (based on survey data) into the number of people furloughed by industry
and the number of businesses still trading7. The table below highlights the survey data as a
proportion of the GB economy and has been modelled against Gloucestershire industry data.

Industry

Accommodation and Food Service Activities
Arts Entertainment and Recreation
Construction
Manufacturing

Proportion of
Proportion of total
employees at risk by
employment
sector
Continuing to trade
Gloucestershire Great
and temporarily
Britain
closed or paused
trading combined
80%
10%
9%
68%
3%
3%
41%
6%
5%
29%
13%
9%

https://www.progressive-policy.net/publications/which-local-authorities-face-biggest-immediate-economichit Based on Q2 predictions, using a weighted industry calculation of sector based GVA.
5

6 Stroud is expected to have one of the highest declines in GVA as set out in the OBR study. The report in question looks at
output loss by sector, so the strength Stroud has in ‘value’ sectors could be concluded to be higher than other parts of the
County, including Gloucester, which has a higher proportion of retail and lower value sectors, therefore the loss would be
less. It’s a model however, so it has limited usage for long-term planning, but it is one of a few examples available. It also
reflects a short-term perspective and not a long-term decline prediction, necessarily.

7

https://www.ons.gov.uk/employmentandlabourmarket/peopleinwork/employmentandemployeetypes/article
s/furloughingofworkersacrossukbusinesses/23march2020to5april2020
https://www.ons.gov.uk/businessindustryandtrade/business/businessservices/bulletins/coronavirusandtheec
onomicimpactsontheuk/latest

Page 54

Administrative and Support Service Activities
29%
8%
10%
Transportation and Storage
26%
4%
5%
Wholesale and Retail Trade; Repair of Motor
20%
17%
17%
Vehicles And Motorcycles
Human Health and Social Work Activities
12%
16%
15%
Professional Scientific and Technical
11%
8%
10%
Activities
Water Supply Sewerage Waste Management
10%
1%
1%
and Remediation Activities
Information and Communication
7%
5%
5%
Education
4%
9%
10%
(Sectors excluded from the survey: agriculture, public administration and defence, public provision
of education and health, finance and insurance)
When modelled against the Gloucestershire economy and the proportion of employees in each
sector, a picture can start to be built.
This shows that the impact on Gloucestershire almost matches the impact on the UK, being just 0.2
per cent below the average in terms of the proportion of furloughed employees. However, looking
at modelling in each district, it shows more variation, with Gloucester in particular having a
comparatively lower proportion of furloughed workers, at around 23.9 per cent. The Cotswolds
through the modelling would have 30.7 per cent of workers furloughed, given its higher proportion
of workers in the Accommodation and food services sector.
When considering modelled data on businesses continuing to trade, as opposed to temporarily
pausing trading by sector, this demonstrates a similar trend. The Cotswolds having the lowest
proportion of businesses continuing to trade, at just over 70 per cent, while Gloucester and
Tewkesbury have 79 per cent and 78 per cent of their businesses continuing to trade respectively.

Total number of employees furloughed
by local authority

8

Data modelled from ONS survey data.

Page 55

Gl

ou

ce

st

er
s

UK

hi

re

ry
bu

ud

ke
s
w

Te

r
te
es
uc

St
ro

an
Gl
o

De

d
Fo
r

es
t

of

ts

w

ol

am
nh
el
te
Ch

8

Co

ry
bu

Te

w

ke
s

St
ro

r
te
es
uc

Gl
o

of

De

d
es
t
Fo
r

Co

ts

w

ol

am
nh
el
te
Ch

ud

35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%
5%
0%
an

16000
14000
12000
10000
8000
6000
4000
2000
0

Proportion of furloughed employees by
Local Authority and UK

This page is intentionally left blank

